
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 
Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy & Accountability Committee 

 
Agenda 

 
Wednesday 5 September 2018 

7.00 pm 
Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration: Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor PJ Murphy (Chair) 
Councillor Patricia Quigley 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

Tony Boys 
Erik Hohenstein 
Chris Littmoden 
Judith Worthy 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 0208 753 2499 
 E-mail:  kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 
 

23 August 2018 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy & Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
5 September 2018 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  4 - 12 

 To approve as an accurate record the minutes of the meeting held on 4th 
July 2018. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4.   FIVE FINANCIAL CHALLENGES FACING THE COUNCIL OVER THE 
MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM  
 

13 - 19 

5.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 

20 

 The Committee is requested to consider the items within the Work 
Programme attached as Appendix A to this report and suggest any 
amendments or additional topics to be included in the future. 
 

 

6.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following dates are proposed: 

 Monday 5th December 2018 

 Tuesday 12th February 2019 

 Wednesday 27th March 2019 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Finance, Commercial 
Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 4 July 2018 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors PJ Murphy (Chair), Patricia Quigley, 
Guy Vincent and Donald Johnson 
 
Co-opted members: Chris Littmoden and Judith Worthy 
 
Other Councillors: Councillors Max Schmid and Rowan Ree 
 
Officers: Kim Dero (Chief Executive), Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director - Finance 
and Governance), Emily Hill (Assistant Director - Corporate Finance), Nick Austin 
(Director of Residents’ Services), Lucy Varenne (Finance Manager, Residents 
Services), Steve Miley (Director of Children’s Services), Mahmood Siddiqi (Director 
for Transport and Highways), David McNulty (Assistant Director of Housing), 
Prakash Daryanani (Head of Finance, Social Care) and Kayode Adewumi (Head of 
Governance & Scrutiny) 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF A VICE CHAIR FOR 2018/19 MUNICIPAL YEAR  

 
Councillor Donald Johnson was appointed as the Vice Chair for the 2018/19 
municipal year.  
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTEES  
 
The Committee agreed the appointment of Tony Boys, Erik Hohenstein, Chris 

Littmoden and Judith Worthy as co-optees for the 2018-19 municipal year. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Tony Boys and Eric Hohenstein.  
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:lucy.varenne@rbkc.gov.uk
mailto:lucy.varenne@rbkc.gov.uk


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2018 were approved and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Chris Littmoden asked for feedback regarding the action point on the 
Council’s strategy on Asset Back Securities as part of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy.  Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director – Finance and 
Governance) noted that a discussion had taken place with the treasury team.  
A report will be made available at the next meeting.  
 
Action - Hitesh Jolapara 

 
6. 2017/18 CORPORATE REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT  

 
Hitesh Jolapara informed the meeting that accounts for 2017/18 were closed 
subject to the Audit, Pensions, and Standards Committee approval on 17th 
July 2018.  The key headlines from the report were set out in Table 1 
providing details of the departmental budgets, the actual spend and variance.  
The meeting noted the biggest areas of pressures, general fund and reserves 
balances. 
 
Hitesh advised that reserves were stable and slightly increased during the 
year.  Ideally, the general balance should be between £14 - £20 million.  He 
noted that other London boroughs faced similar pressures in Adults and 
Children’s Services budgets. Furthermore, our reserves were around the mid 
point range which was good.  
 
Judith Worthy asked for an explanation of earmarked reserves and the effect 
of using Section 106 funding to balance the budget. Chris Littmoden further 
enquired what it meant when funds were earmarked, who earmarks the funds 
and could they be unearmarked?  Hitesh explained that £1.6m S106 funds 
were used to mitigate pressures in the budget last year.  S106 funding 
consists of specific and non-specific spend. He was comfortable to use S106 
funding if the spend met the criteria.  
 
The Chair asked how long S106 funding would last before there was no more 
funds left to use? The meeting was informed that there was a need to be 
disciplined when using reserves and S106 funding.  Some reserves were 
strictly earmarked for specific purposes and to meet future liabilities while 
others were a matter of choice. Cabinet takes the decision to earmark and 
use reserves when appropriate. Due to the financial pressures facing the 
Council, the use of reserves would be more closely monitored and stricter 
controls introduced.   
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Judith Worthy stated that in relation to earmarked funds and the allocation of 
internal funds, it would have been helpful to see what was spent where. 
Hitesh agreed that the presentation would be considered in future reports. 
Emily Hill noted that there were not many significant commitments against 
reserves. The expectation was for most long-term contracts to be kept within 
the annual budget.  The Chair asked why just £70m of the £90m was 
allocated. The £19m General Balances was unallocated. It is the place of last 
resort. Hitesh explained that certain amounts for provisions were set aside for 
any future liabilities.  Around £40m in earmarked reserves were restricted.   
£14m of restricted funds were set aside to cover grants, insurance and other 
committed spend. The rest of the reserve funds was uncommitted.  
 
The Chair suggested that reports going forward could have key points 
presented at the beginning.  Hitesh agreed to provide an executive summary 
with key numbers highlighted with some graphs.  He also offered one to one 
sessions with members to help explain the figures in more depth.  
 
Action: Hitesh Jolapara 
 
Hitesh stated that the council is reasonably comfortable at this stage with the 
current position of having £90m in reserves and £19m in General Balances 
considering the last 10 years of austerity.  We are not in a bad position 
compared to other local authorities of similar size. But we need to 
acknowledge that there will be more tough days ahead.  Councillor Max 
Schmid added that we have managed to slightly increase our reserves 
despite the current financial climate.  He was comfortable with the reserves 
position as we have had to make significant savings.  Hitesh and his team 
should be praised for the work done in managing the budget. 
 
Regarding Invest to Save projects, the meeting was informed that the council 
was reviewing this and are likely to look for a 2-3 years payback on 
proposals.  The Finance Team was getting tougher with approvals and on 
staffing overspends.  
 
Chris Littmoden suggested there should be a formal system of post 
implementation reviews and regular monitoring of projects.  Hitesh noted that 
learning from the managed services contract had been incorporated into the 
Hampshire IBC project.  The Finance Team would be looking at how services 
had managed to deliver on their promises.  This was part of a new 
procedures being put together around business cases for invest to save. 
 
The Chair asked why the requested ‘Ruthlessly Financially Efficient’ report 
had not been submitted to the committee.  The meeting was informed that the 
paper had not yet been finalised and would need to be reviewed one final 
time before it was brought to the committee.  The Chair noted that there was 
no communication explaining why it was not forthcoming.  He emphasised 
that the Chair and Chair alone, not the Chief Executive, Leader, Cabinet 
Member or Officers should decide what reports should come to the 
committee.  The primary role of PACs is to help shape policy.  He requested 
that the paper be presented to the next meeting and that this was not to 
happen again.   

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Action: Hitesh Jolapara 
 
Councillor Patricia Quigley requested an explanation about the level of 
banking charges paid by the Council. Emily Hill advised that the council paid 
commercial banking charges which was in line with other large organisations 
due to the level of transactions made.  The figure in the report was an 
underspend due to a prior year correction.  
 
Regarding an overspend in short breaks placement budget, it was explained 
that the level of spend depends on children’s specific needs. The spend could 
spike if there were children needing greater support. A further question was 
asked on the nature of the Education staffing overspend. It was agreed that 
officers provide details of this variance offline as the responsible officers were 
not available.  Councillor Max Schmid explained further that growth had been 
included in the SEN budget this year’s budget as there were concerns about 
the service last year. It was hoped that the growth would eliminate the 
overspend at the end of the financial year.  
 
Action: Steve Miley 
 
Councillor Quigley inquired why the Council paid private landlords an 
incentive payment. David McNulty (Assistant Director) explained that the one-
off incentive payments were made to landlords to secure private sector 
accommodation for homeless families.  This was a cost-effective way of 
reducing costs to the council.  The Council incurs a saving if we do not put 
people into temporary accommodation.  If the Council were to approach 
private sector housing to pay for temporary accommodation, the rates would 
be much higher than the incentive payment.  Once the family has secured 
private sector accommodation, the Council has discharged its duty under the 
homelessness act.  The practice prevents homelessness.  
 
David McNulty added that Council was competing with other local authorities 
for properties.  In comparison with other local authorities’ payments, our 
incentive payment was at the very low end.  The Chair asked who was 
responsible for the payment of rent? The meeting was informed the tenant 
was responsible for paying their rent.  Councillor Max Schmid explained that 
the payment incentivised landlords who previously would not rent their 
properties to people on housing benefit.  
 
Councillor Vincent asked why was there a 10% overspend in parking and 
what was the process of authorising overspends on projects.  Emily Hill 
explained that were positive variances within the budget especially with 
regards to the new cashless parking service and some of the expenditure was 
directly related to the additional income.  The new system was performing 
better than expected with a positive income variance of £2m. 
 
Mahmood Siddiqi explained that there had been a one- off cost of £900,000 
to cover the move to the new cashless system.  Delays in cash collection due 
to an unforeseen delay in the procurement of the new pay and display 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

machines and higher transition cost had contributed to the overspend.  All 
these costs had been put through governance.  
 
The committee felt that there should be more scrutiny around overspend 
approvals and better budget forecasting.   
 
Action: New cashless parking system - breakdown of the £900,000 one - off 
cost to Members. Mahmood Siddiqi 
 
Hitesh stated that commercial income was an area of concern.  The senior 
management are looking at this and introducing better governance.  The 
Chief Executive said that we had been over optimistic in the past around 
sales income.  We should be more thorough with the figures and look at 
business cases and sale forecasts in more detail. 
 
Councillor Schmid stated that a breakdown of the Commercial Directorate 
budget would be needed for a detailed scrutiny of this area.  It was agreed 
that a report on commercial income should be submitted to the committee. 
 
Action: Hitesh Jolapara 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent observed that there were still high staff overspends in 
departments especially Children’s, Adults, and Housing. Hitesh Jolapara 
stated that there had been a staffing overspend in Children’s Commissioning 
and the use of agency staff was an issue. However, efforts were being made 
to reduce it. The Chair asked for information about the use of temporary staff 
for frontline services opposed to non-frontline services.  
 
It was agreed that a report on staff and agency costs including a breakdown 
of front line vs non-front-line staff. 
 
Action: Mark Grimley 
 
Chris Littmoden asked how rigorous was the questioning of what we do and 
why we do it? Looking at the commercial area for example.  Councillor Max 
Schmid stated that a few years ago, the council undertook an outcome based 
budgeting exercise.   Each service looked at what service they provided – 
statutory vs non- statutory service, meeting manifesto commitments and 
improving social inclusion. This helped us ascertain that there was no 
unnecessary departmental spend which was not of benefit to residents.  
Sadly, the exercise did not offer up any significant savings nor areas which 
did not contribute to the Council’s core objectives. 
 
While considering the Public Health outturn position, Councillor Johnson 
noted that there was a £958,000 underspend in the substance misuse 
services.  He inquired whether that meant the number of residents accessing 
substance misuse services had dropped? Councillor Schmid stated that the 
number of clients were lower.  Therefore, higher payments were not triggered.  
Better contract monitoring had helped.  Members requested further 
clarification on this and is there any impact on these contracts for 2018/19? 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
 
Action: Prakash Daryanani 
 

7. RESIDENTS' SERVICES REPORT - REVENUE REPORT 2018/19  
 
Nick Austin stated that Residents’ Services was a new department and 
budgets may alter as the structure was still being finalised. He gave a 
breakdown of services provided by the department. 
 
The Chair observed that if by month 2 the department was projecting an 
overspend in commercial services, how effective was the budgeting 
forecasting? Nick stated that the budget had been challenging and the 
department was looking at other ways to resolve the issues.  Councillor 
Schmid added that the budget was drawn up in the January 2018.  The 
climate had changed over the past five months.   The department was 
developing measures to reduce the overspend. Nick explained that as it was 
early in the year a cautious approach was taken when producing the 
monitoring report.  There is a reduction in the projected licensing fees due to 
a change in legal definition about what is recoverable in a licencing fee.  
Income targets in some areas will be adjusted if other sources of income 
cannot be identified. 
 
Councillor Vincent questioned whether it would be useful to use trend 
analysis in our budgeting.  Chris Littmoden asked for a commitment to use 
trend analysis to help with the budget.  Hitesh informed the meeting that trend 
analysis was used as part of the budgeting tools.  Prakash Daryanani advised 
that Social Care used trend analysis to aid forecasting.  At the beginning of 
the year and during the quarterly budget monitoring process trend analysis 
were relied upon. 
 
It was agreed that the use of trend analysis to aid quarterly budget monitoring 
would be introduced. 
 
Action: Hitesh Jolapara 
 
The Chair noted that the sports operations bookings income budget was 
lower than last year’s outturn and queried the reason for this.  Nick agreed to 
circulate an explanation. 
 
Action: Nick Austin 
 
The meeting also noted the drop in projected PCN income.  It was explained 
that this was a general trend across London.  With the introduction of 
cashless parking technology, people can now top up their parking from their 
phones avoiding a PCN for overstaying and other customer behaviour 
changes. 
 
The Chair asked Nick how he used the data detailed in the report with his 
team and how often did they meet to go through budgets? Nick stated that 
they met weekly and discussed finance regularly.  Regular monthly income 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

and expenditure reviews also took place with the team.  Nick added that with 
regards to agency spend, the team had looked at every post to ensure that 
the use of agency staff was justified. 
 
Councillor Quigley inquired about the additional cemeteries income.  Nick 
explained that an increase in burials was projected.  The Chair asked whether 
dynamic charging had been considered in relation to the borough’s sports 
facilities, such as the tennis courts in Ravenscourt Park.  Nick advised he 
would take this away to look at and consider. 
. 
 
Action: Nick Austin 
 
Councillor Vincent asked for the related costs and savings of the Council’s 
reorganisation. Hitesh advised that one-off costs of around £500,000 had 
occurred.  
 
Kim Dero (Chief Executive) stated that the reorganisation had streamlined 
senior management posts from 9 to 7.  The Council now has 2 directors 
looking after the Place, 3 directors in charge of Care and 2 directors covering 
Corporate issues.  We have stripped out management costs and better 
streamlined services.  Now we are doing few things well against doing a lot of 
things not so well.  She noted that lessons have been learnt from Grenfell on 
fire safety and health and safety issues.  We will not make short term gains 
which in the long term would be detrimental to us. 
 
The Chair asked if he were to set as a challenge to hit the budgets on every 
income line, would this be achievable by the year end? Nick advised that the 
expectation was to meet budgets targets by the end of the year and where 
this was not possible to introduce other mitigations.    Kim added that there 
would be zero tolerance for over spending in any department.  Directors must 
be accountable for their budgets.  
 

8. SECTION 106 UPDATE REPORT  
 
It was agreed that consideration of the report be deferred to the next meeting. 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME 2018 - 19  
 
The following items were agreed for inclusion in the Committee’s work 
programme: 

 Open Facilitated Session - The Chair informed that Erik Hohenstein had 
suggested an open facilitated session to look at what were the five key 
finance issues facing the Council over the medium to long term and what 
can we do to meet such challenges. The Chair advised that Erik 
Hohenstein would facilitate the session. 

 Commercial Income and commercial directorate 

 External funding including grant funding, bid writing and other 
Income sources 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 Contract management – performance, governance, and monitoring. 
Using a live contract as a case study. 

 Financing our economy – High street renewal, understanding inward 
investment, business rates. 

 Agency staff – use and costs 

 Work styles and patterns 

 Using our estate more economically 

 Staffing budget 

 IT Desktop strategy 

 Transition to Hampshire IBC 

 Lesson learnt on from savings delivered and the consequences 
 

 
 

10. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The following dates were agreed: -  

 Monday 5th September 2018 

 An additional meeting in October or November 2018 

 Monday 5th December 2018 

 Tuesday 12th February 2019 

 Wednesday 27th March 2019 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.25 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Kayode Adewumi 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Actions from the Last meeting 
 

Issue Officer Action 

8. Section 106 Update Report  
 

Jo 
Rowlands: 

Next meeting 

Report on the Council’s strategy on Asset Back 
Securities 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

Next meeting 

Commercial Revenue report. 
 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

Next meeting 

Staff and agency costs including a breakdown of 
front line vs non-front-line staff. 
 

Mark 
Grimley 

Next meeting 

‘Ruthlessly Financially Efficient’ report be 
presented to the next meeting.   
 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

Paper 
circulated  

Explanation on overspend in short breaks 
placement budget 
 

Steve Miley Response 
circulated 

The use of trend analysis to aid quarterly budget 
monitoring should be introduced. 
 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

Incorporated 
into future 
reports 

The Chair suggested that reports going forward 
could have key points presented at the 
beginning.  Hitesh agreed to provide an 
executive summary with key numbers 
highlighted with some graphs.  He also offered 
one to one sessions with members to help 
explain the figures in more depth.  
 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 
 

Incorporated 
into future 
reports 

Sports operations bookings income budget was 
lower than last year’s outturn and queried the 
reason for this. 
 

Nick Austin Response 
circulated 

Dynamic charging to be considered in relation to 
the borough’s sports facilities, such as the tennis 
courts in Ravenscourt Park.  Officers to consider 
it. 
 

Mahmood 
Siddiqi 

Outstanding 

New cashless parking system - breakdown of 
the £900,000 one - off cost to Members  
 

Mahmood 
Siddiqi 

Outstanding 

Further Information on substance misuse 
services spend to Members 
 

Prakash 
Daryanani 

Outstanding 

 

Page 11



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts 

Policy and Accountability Committee 
 

5 September 2018 
 

 

 

Five financial challenges facing the Council over the medium to long-term 
  

Report of the Strategic Director of Finance and Governance – Hitesh Jolapara 
 

Report Status : Open Report 
 

Classification – For Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara – Strategic Director, Finance & Governance 
 

Report Author: 
Emily Hill – Assistant Director, Corporate Finance 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3145 
E-mail: emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

1 Background 
 

1.1 The Committee requested a short report on key financial challenges that 
concern the Strategic Director of Finance and Governance over the 
longer term.  This report sets out five key challenges. The request was 
not to attempt to provide solutions but to prompt thinking and discussion. 

 
2 Financial challenges  

 
Issue 1 - Balancing the budget and future finance strategy  
 

2.1 Local government has faced unprecedented financial challenges in 
recent years which will remain well into the next decade. A recent 
National Audit Office (NAO) report1 ‘Financial Sustainability of Local 
Authorities 2018’ identified a real terms reduction in spending power 
(grant and local tax) of 28.5% from 2010/11 to 2018/19. 
 

2.2 A comparison between Hammersmith and Fulham and the national 
average is set out in Table 1. The 42% real terms reduction for this 

                                            
1
 5

th
 March 2018 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Council is significantly above average. Since 2010 our budget savings 
have exceeded budget growth by £113m.   
 
Table 1 – Real terms spending power reductions since 2010 
 

 Real Terms 
Reduction 2010/11 

to 2016/17 

Real Terms 
Reduction 2010/11 

to 2018/19  

National Average 28.5% 28.5% 

London Average 32.2% n/a 

Hammersmith and Fulham 36% 42% 

 
2.3 The reasons why the council’s spending power reduction is so high are:  

 The council received a relatively high level of grant funding in 
2010/11. This makes it more sensitive to cuts in grant funding.  

 Local council tax policy. From 2010/11 to 2018/19 national 
average council tax2 increased in cash terms by 16%. This 
compares to a reduction in cash terms of 10% at LBHF. For 
LBHF, in Band D terms this 26% difference equates to £211 per 
property (£17m per annum).  

 A high level of business rates appeals following the 2017 
business rates revaluation and on-going revision of rateable 
values at Westfield. This means LBHF collects £2.5m less than 
the local government finance system assumes.    

 
2.4 Government funding is expected to fall further well into the next 

decade. The Council is currently modelling a budget gap of £50m 
by 2022/23 (Appendix A).  Closing this budget gap, on top of the 
savings already delivered since 2010/11, is a major challenge. 
 

2.5 A local authority can absorb funding reductions by reviewing service 
spend, raising alternative income, maximising commercial 
opportunities, looking at local policy (for example tax, fees and 
charges, home care) or using one-off funding (such as reserves or 
section 106). Striking the right balance between these options is a key 
issue for the future financial health of the council. 
 
Issue 2 – Financial resilience 
 

2.6 The Council is not immune from wider economic and fiscal challenges. 
There are several known ‘unknowns’ that may impact on our future 
finances. Some examples are set out below. 
 

2.7 The Government is undertaking a fair funding review. This will 
change how government funding is distributed between local 
authorities beyond 2019/20. The expectation is that funding will switch 
from London to other parts of the country. The level of loss, and any 
‘damping’ arrangements that smooth the reduction, are unknown.  

                                            
2
 Including the adult social care precept 

Page 13



 
2.8 Brexit and economic uncertainty. The short-term and long-term 

impacts of Brexit are uncertain. For example, a no-deal Brexit may 
result in: 

 Inflationary pressures from a lower pound, tariffs on imports, 
labour shortages and supply chain problems. 

 An economic slowdown/recession. This would impact on council 
income (such as land charges, business rates, the number of 
residents getting a discount through the local council tax support 
scheme) and expenditure (for example homelessness). 

 Delaying or halting regeneration initiatives.  

 Worse public finances that impact on future funding. 
 

2.9 Review of adult social care funding.  A Government Green Paper on 
social care for older people is due in “autumn” 2018. The Government 
has said that the proposals will “ensure that the care and support 
system is sustainable in the long term”. Potential proposals include a 
lifetime “absolute limit” (i.e. cap) on what people pay for social care, 
and changes to the means-test. The Health and Social Care Secretary 
confirmed that a cap on lifetime social care charges would be 
introduced. Any major changes to the current funding regime will 
present the council with both threats and opportunities. 
 

2.10 The council needs to have sufficient financial resilience to cope with 
these, and other, potential funding risks. One way of providing such 
resilience is ensuring that the council has adequate balances and 
reserves. The council’s general fund balances and reserves are set out 
in Table 2. Reserves can only be used once. 
 
Table 2 – 2018/19 general fund balances and reserves 
 

General fund 
summary 

Opening 
balance 

Budgeted 
contributions 

Commitments 
Available 
balance 

  £000's £000's £000's £000's 

General balances (19,004) 0 0 (19,004) 

Earmarked reserves (79,146) (2,766) 30,515 (51,397) 

  (98,150) (2,766) 30,515 (70,401) 

Earmarked restricted (15,583) 0 0 (15,583) 

Total (113,733) (2,766) 30,515 (85,984) 

 
2.11 Within Table 2 the commitments identify where approval has been 

given to use the reserve for a specific purpose (for example managed 

services implementation). Restricted reserves are those which have 

constraints on how they can be used (for example the insurance fund). 

 

 

Page 14



Issue 3 – Schools Funding  

2.12 Councils have come under increasing pressure over schools funding, 

particularly relating to children with special education needs (SEN).  

2.13 Funding for children and young people with SEN, from their early years 

to age 25 and alternative provision, is provided by the government 

through the high needs block of Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  

2.14 For many authorities such funding is insufficient. Research carried out 

by the Society of London Treasurers (SLT) found that 21 boroughs 

incurred a deficit on their DSG in 2017/18. The financial support they 

provided to schools exceeded the grant available.  

2.15 Hammersmith and Fulham is one of the boroughs that has supported 

SEN provision in schools by providing more funding than the grant 

received. A cumulative £13.4m deficit is forecast to the end of 2018/19.  

Mitigating actions are being explored and the Council will need to set 

aside resources to fund the deficit should these actions be unable to 

resolve the ongoing deficit and recover the cumulative deficit.  

Table 3 – DSG deficit 

 £m 

DSG deficit brought forward from 2016/17 2.165 

DSG in-year deficit in 2017/18 4.867 

In-year 2018/19 forecast deficit 6.400 

Forecast deficit at end of 2018/19 13.432 

 
2.16 An emergent issue has also arisen regarding Early Years Funding. A 

change in the National Funding Formula requires local authorities to 
passport funding via the Early Years Dedicated Schools Grant (EY DSG) 
to all providers based on a participation (activity model) with standard 
unit rates. Most adversely impacted by this change are the 
borough’s four maintained Nursery Schools, who currently receive extra 
support and work with Child Protection and Children in Need referrals. 
 

Issue 4 – Major projects 
 

2.17 The Council is progressing several major projects that are likely to 
impact on future finances. In particular: 

 Use of reserves. 

 Borrowing costs. If Council borrowing is required to support the 
scheme the future revenue cost is estimated at £55,000 per 
annum for each £1 million borrowed. 

 Affordability and value for money. 

 Other potential financial benefits and costs. 

 Risk.   

Page 15



 Capacity. 

 Taxation. 

 Investment strategy (longer term strategy to maximise 
commercial income). 

Some key projects are set out below. 
 

2.18 West King Street Renewal/Hammersmith Town Hall refurbishment. 
In November 2017, the Council announced new plans for major 
regeneration of the King Street area which will also include 
redevelopment of Hammersmith Town Hall. 
 

2.19 Earl’s Court. The Council entered into a Conditional Land Sale 
agreement (CLSA), on 23 January 2013, with the developer Capital & 
Counties Properties Plc (CapCo), to include Council owned land 
including the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates. Full details 
can be found in the 3 September 2012 Cabinet Report. The trigger 
notice for the CLSA was served in November 2013 however, the 
administration continues to work for a better deal for local residents. 
 

2.20 Housing development programme. On 6 July 2015, Cabinet 
approved Phase 1 of the Housing Development Programme, to deliver 
31 units of residential accommodation over 4 sites, financed by £10.8m 
Right-to-Buy and Section 106 receipts. The Phase 1 tendering process 
has been re-run as the originally selected bidder failed to meet contract 
performance standards. This has resulted in slippage of development 
expenditure. 
 

2.21 As the council is close to its Housing Revenue Account debt cap most 
future housing programmes will be delivered via the Affordable Housing 
Framework that has been approved by Cabinet on 6 February 2017 or 
through Council Companies for homes outside of the HRA. Although 
the Affordable Housing Framework report does not specify the cost of 
the scheme, £15m provision has been made in the Capital Programme 
(£12m in 2018/19 and £3m in 2019/20). 
 

2.22 Old Oak and Park Royal Opportunity Area. As part of developing the 
business case for a High Speed 2 / Crossrail interchange at Old Oak 
Common the London Boroughs of Brent, Ealing and Hammersmith & 
Fulham and the GLA published a joint Vision for the Old Oak area to 
encourage appropriate development and to maximise regeneration 
benefits in the area. Since then the Old Oak and Park Royal Mayoral 
Development Corporation (OPDC) was established in April 2015 and is 
now the planning authority for the Old Oak and Park Royal Opportunity 
Area. 
 

2.23 ARK Swift. The council is in discussions with ARK schools’ charity, 
who lease the ARK Swift primary school in White City from the council, 
over proposals for the redevelopment of the site to include improved 
replacement facilities and new homes. The council is considering its 
role in the ownership and management of the homes. 

Page 16



 
Issue 5 – Lessons from Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) 
 

2.24 The financial difficulties arising at NCC have received widespread news 
coverage. A second 114 notice was recently issued that indicates they 
are at risk of spending more than the resources they have available. A 
section 114 notice effectively bans all expenditure except that which 
protects vulnerable people. 
 

2.25 Auditors have also issued a rare section 24 notice at Birmingham City 
Council. This is a warning shot that requires a council to get its 
finances in order. It is widely viewed as a precursor to a section 114 
notice.  It would be no surprise to see more notices issued in the 
forthcoming weeks.  
 

2.26 Given the financial constraints within which local government is 
operating there are lessons to be learnt from NCC.  In response to the 
first 114 notice at NCC the Government required a Best Value 
Inspection which reported in March 2018. Some key findings are set 
out below.  
 

2.27 NCC lost tight budgetary control and appeared to abandon strong 
and effective budget scrutiny. The report noted that the Council 
committed resources to proposals which were not supported by robust 
business plans and which could not address the regular budget 
overspends.  
 

2.28 NCC has relied on one off items, allocation of balances and capital 
receipts to support revenue spend and balance the budget.  
Reserves and balances reduced from £67m in 2014/15 to a forecast 
£8m in 2017/18. 
 

2.29 There was a failure to document savings proposals and outcomes 
with a lack of accountability for their delivery. Meetings or agreed 
actions of the Senior Management Team were also not minuted. 
 

2.30 Failure to respond to internal or external scrutiny. The Council did 
not respond well to internal or external criticism. Individual Members 
appear to have been denied answers to legitimate questions and 
scrutiny arrangements were constrained by what was felt the Executive 
at the time would allow. Where external agencies reported adverse 
findings, these were not reported with an analysis of the issues or 
action led response. 

 
 
Appendices  

 
 

Appendix A – Forecast budget resources and gap 
 

Page 17



Appendix A – Forecast budget resources and gap 
 

Base Budget  
 
 

Department 
 Expenditure  

£’m 
 Income  

£’m 
 Net Spending  

£’m 

Adult social care 86 (33) 53 

Children's services (£90m of grant funding relating 
education) 137 (99) 38 

Environmental services 36 (17) 19 

Parking 10 (36) (26) 

Corporate services 74 (15) 59 

Housing and regeneration (general fund) 32 (26) 6 

Libraries and archives 3 (1) 2 

Centrally managed budgets (excludes housing 
benefits) 20 (5) 15 

Public health 22 (22) 0 

Contributions to balances / recharges and capital 
financing adjustments 2 (16) (14) 

Total 422 (270) 152 

 
The above figures exclude housing benefits payments, and matching grant 
subsidy, of £145m. 

 
Four year forecast 

 

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Budget gap £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Base budget (as above) 151.8 151.8 151.8 151.8 

Pay and contract inflation 
(cumulative) 

5.2 10.4 15.6 20.8 

Growth approved as part of the 
2018/19 budget 

0.4 0.4 0.2 0.2 

Headroom (cumulative) 6.0 12.0 18.0 24.0 

Gross budget requirement 163.4 174.6 185.5 196.7 

Forecast resources     

Developer contributions (3.3) (3.3) (3.3) (3.3) 

Government grant (28.3) (26.9) (25.6) (24.3) 

Council tax (57.2) (57.8) (58.4) (59.0) 

Business rates (56.3) (57.4) (58.5) (59.7) 

Gross budget gap – cumulative  18.3 29.2 39.7 50.4 

 

Page 18



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2018 - 19  
 

Topic 
Officer Date 

Open Facilitated Session - To look at what are 
the five key finance issues facing the Council 
over the medium to long term and what can we 
do to meet such challenges.  

 

Erik 
Hohenstein 
– To 
facilitate 

September 
2018 

‘Ruthlessly Financially Efficient’ report be 
presented to the next meeting. 

 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

 

Section 106 Update Report  Jo 
Rowlands 

 

Report on the Council’s strategy on Asset Back 
Securities 
 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

 

Staff and agency costs including a breakdown 
of front line vs non-front-line staff. 
 

Mark 
Grimley 

 

Staffing budget 
Mark 
Grimley 

 

IT Desktop Strategy 
Veronica 
Barella 

 

Commercial Income and commercial directorate 
Lisa 
Redfern 

 

Contract Management – Performance, 
governance, and monitoring. Using a live 
contract as a case study. 

Lisa 
Redfern 

 

Lesson learnt on from savings delivered and the 
consequences 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

 

Transition to Hampshire IBC 
Mark 
Grimley 

 

Work styles and patterns 
Mark 
Grimley 

 

Using our estate more economically 
Jo 
Rowlands 

 

External funding including grant funding, bid 
writing and other Income sources 

Jo 
Rowlands 

 

Financing our economy – High street renewal, 
understanding inward investment, business 
rates. 

Jo 
Rowlands 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	180704 Actions from the Last meeting

	4 Five financial challenges facing the Council over the medium to long-term
	5 Committee Work Programme

